
 

- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

Elkhart Community Schools / Elkhart, Indiana 
September 23, 2014 

 
CALENDAR 

 
September 23 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services 

Center 
September 30 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

October  14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Tipton 
October  21 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

October 28 7:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

  

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
C. GIFT ACCEPTANCE – The administration recommends the Board accept 

with appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community 
Schools. 

 
D. CONSTRUCTION UPDATE 

 
E. DEPARTMENT SPOTLIGHT – Elkhart Area Career Center 

    
F. MINUTES –  

September 9, 2014 – Public Work Session 

September 9, 2014 - Regular Board Meeting  

G. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

  Financial Report – January 1, 2014 – August 31, 2014 
 

Extra Curricular Purchase – The Business Office seeks Board approval of 
an extra-curricular purchase request from Pierre Moran. 

 
2015 Budget – The Business Office recommends Board approval of the 

2015 Budget. 

 
2015-2019 Capital Projects Plan – The Business Office recommends 

Board approval of the plan for the Capital Projects Fund for 2015-2019. 
 

 



BOARD AGENDA  September 23, 2014 
 
 

2 
   

2015 School Bus Replacement Plan – The Business Office recommends 
Board approval of the 2015 School Bus Replacement Plan. 

 
Tax Neutrality Resolution – The Business Office recommends approval of 

a resolution to reduce the 2015 Capital Projects and Bus Replacement 
Funds by an amount equal to the levy for debt service on the pension 

bonds. 
 

2015 Budget Goals – The Business Office recommends approval of a 
resolution for establishing budget goals for 2015. 

 
Resolution for Budget Reduction – The Business Office recommends 

Board approval of a resolution authorizing reductions, which may be 

required at the budget hearing with Department of Local Finance. 
 

Bid Award – The Business Office recommends Board approval of the bid 
award for the 2014 Elkhart School Mechanical Physical Plant 

Improvements. 
 

 Fundraisers – The Business Office recommends Board approval of 
proposed school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Career Center Agreements – The administration recommends Board 

approval of Career Center agreements with its feeder schools. 
 

Grant Application – The administration recommends Board approval for 

the submission of a grant application to Verizon to support STEAM 
Academy Teachers Professional Development. 

 
Grant Application – The administration recommends Board approval for 

submission of a grant application to Target Field Trips to provide funding for 
a Kindergarten Field Trip at Mary Beck Elementary. 

 
Grant Application – The administration recommends Board approval for 
submission of a grant application to Lowe’s to provide funding for fencing at 

North Side Middle School. 
 

Grant Application – The administration recommends Board approval for 

submission of a grant application to the Elkhart Education Foundation to 
provide funding for a smart board for the Art department at Memorial High 

School. 

 

Overnight Trip Request – The administration seeks Board approval of 
overnight trip requests. 

     



BOARD AGENDA  September 23, 2014 
 
 

3 
   

I. PERSONNEL 
  

Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as 

recommended by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
 administration. 

 
J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 
 From Audience   

 

 From Superintendent and Staff  
   

 From Board 
                  

     
K. ADJOURNMENT 















Cleveland Elementary School 
Elkhart Community Schools 

53403 CR 1 North, Elkhart, Indiana   46514 

Telephone:  574-262-5580;  Fax:  574-262-5582 

mstrickler@elkhart.k12.in.us 

 

 

Date:   September 15, 2014 

 

To:   Dr. Rob Haworth, Superintendent 

Elkhart Community Schools Board of School Trustees 

 

From:   Martha Strickler, Principal 

 

RE:   Donation Approval 

 

 

Last week, the Walmart store on CR 20 donated school supplies to help out students and 

teachers at Cleveland Elementary School.   The supplies consisted of notebooks, whiteboards, 

electric pencil sharpeners, staples, scissors, pens, book covers, and pencil bags.  The donated 

supplies are valued at approximately $1, 000.00.  

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement is sent to: 

 

Kristof Cortebeeck 

Store Manager, Facility #4399 

Walmart Stores, Inc. 

30830 Old US 20 

Osceola, IN  46514 

 

Respectfully, 

Martha Strickler 

Principal 

Cleveland Elementary School 

 

mailto:mstrickler@elkhart.k12.in.us






MINUTES OF THE 

PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

 

September 9, 2014 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:00 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Dorisanne H. Nielsen Karen S. Carter 
Present: Carolyn R. Morris Susan C. Daiber 
 Glenn L. Duncan Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Rob Haworth John Hill  
 Doug Thorne Doug Hasler 
 Tony England Bill Kovach 
 David Byrd  

    

Roll Call 

The Board discussed: ISBA Conference, School Without Walls, Agenda items, 
Bus fire, Enrollment, Pre K Program, Release Programs, and Initiatives. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:40  p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, President 
 
 
______________________________
Carolyn R. Morris, Vice President 
 
 
_________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
______-absent-_________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
Signatures 

 



 1. 

MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

September 9, 2014 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road – 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Dorisanne H. Nielsen Karen S. Carter 
Present: Carolyn R. Morris Susan C. Daiber 

 Glenn L. Duncan Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Dorisanne Nielsen called the regular meeting of the Board 

of School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited.   

Call to 

Order/Pledge 
 

Mrs. Nielsen discussed the invitation to speak protocol.  

 

Protocol 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): $200.00 
from Karen Cittadine; $100.00 from Beverly Billings of Faithful 

Friends Pet Cremation Services; and $100.00 from Water 
Managers, Inc. DBA Kauffman Laundry, to support transportation 

costs for future field trips; a check for $250.00 from  Gurley Leep 
Automotive Family, Driven To Give Event for the Celebrating 

Excellence Gifts and Donations fund; a donation of several 
graphical and electrical items with an approximate market value of 

$9,000.00 from Bayer HealthCare to be used in the Career 
Center’s graphic design and automation and engineering 

programs; and $500.00 from an anonymous donor for Central 
athletics to assist in strengthening the growth of its’ programs. 
 

Gift 

Acceptance 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
August 26, 2014 - Public Work Session  

August 26, 2014 - Regular Board Meeting  
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims 
totaling $4,894,441.60 as shown on the September 9, 2014, 

claims listing. (codified file 1415-24) 
 

Payment of 
Claims 

Doug Hasler, executive director of support services, reported the 
following fund loans were made on August 29, 2014:  $35,000.00 

to Debt Services Fund from Bus Replacement Fund. 
 

Fund Loan 



 

 2. 

Doug Hasler explained the formal budget presentation had been 
given at the August 26th Board meeting and as a result, public 

hearings were authorized for this meeting. 

Public Hearing 
Explanation 

 

President Nielsen opened a public hearing on the proposed 2015 

Budget.  Hearing no comments from the audience members, 
President Nielsen declared the hearing was closed. 

 

Public Hearing 

President Nielsen opened a public hearing on the proposed 2015 

Capital Projects Plan.  Hearing no comments from the audience 
members, President Nielsen declared the hearing was closed. 

 

Public Hearing 

President Nielsen opened a public hearing on the proposed 2015 

School Bus Replacement Plan.  Hearing no comments from the 
audience members, President Nielsen declared the hearing was 

closed. 
 

Public Hearing 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the proposal from Lake 
City Bank to provide banking services for a two year period.  Mr. 

Hasler explained six proposals were received.  In response to 
Board inquiry, he explained the criteria required for each proposal.  
In addition to those requirements, Lake City Bank was the best 

overall choice based on the availability of fully functional remote 
deposit technology, preparation of bank statements with 

summarized totals of transaction activity, and proximity of full 
service branches. 

 

Cash 
Management 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school 

fundraisers in accordance with Board policy. 
 

Fundraisers 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading to Board Policy GDBA – 10, Employees in 

Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan.  Doug Thorne, 
executive director of personnel and legal services, indicated the 

changes needed are:  to revise the pay for the radio station 
morning edition host as responsibilities have been added and to 

make it comparable to other stations; to eliminate the deputy 
comptroller position which was needed during the training period; 
and creation of a Jr. ROTC program manager position. 

 

Board Policy 
GDBA - 10 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading to Board Policy GDBA - 8, Registered 
Nurses Compensation Plan, which will compensate nurses for the 

longer work day.  There will be no change in their hourly pay rate 
and the change is retroactive to August 8, 2014.   

 

Board Policy 

GDBA - 8 

  



 

 3. 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to 
the 2014-2015 Board of School Trustees Meeting Schedule as 

originally approved at the March 25, 2014 Board meeting. The 
work session on September 16, 2014 needed to be changed to 

September 30, 2014 due to Board members attending a state 
conference. 

 

2014-15 
Board Meeting 

Schedule 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of an 

Indiana Department of Education Grant for Excellence in 
Performance Awards.  Dr. John Hill, assistant superintendent for 

instruction, explained this grant recognizes the achievement of 
teachers who taught in Priority or Focus Schools during the 2013-

14 school year and who were rated effective or highly effective in 
the teacher evaluation system. (codified file 1415-25) 

 

Grant 

Application 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request 

for Osolo Elementary 5th graders to go to Camp Eberhart in Three 
Rivers, Michigan, October 6 -7, 2014, to participate in activities 
that allow for the application of knowledge and skills in the real 

world with an emphasis on working in groups, leadership, 
communication, and respecting the environment. 

 

Overnight Trip 

Request 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board policy for staff members as 
recommended by the administration on the September 9, 2014 

listing. (codified file 1415-26) 
 

Conference 

Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration:  

 

Personnel 
Report 

Maternity leave of absence for the following two (2) certified 

staff:   
Katrina Barhydt, counselor at Central, beginning 
9/25/14 and ending 10/22/14  

Julie Clarke, grade 3 at Bristol, beginning 10/20/14 
and ending 11/14/14 

 

Maternity 

Leave 

Change to maternity leave for Meganne Vrient, kindergarten 

at Beck, beginning 9/23/14 and ending on 12/19/14. 
 

Change to 

Maternity 
Leave 

Resignation of certified staff member Griffin Bemisderfer, 
world languages at Memorial, effective 8/18/14.   

 

Certified 
Resignation 

Retirement of certified employee Richard Mendez, assisstant 

principal at North Side, effective 9/12/14, with 15 years of 
service. 

 
 

Certified 

Retirement 



 

 4. 

Volunteer leave for certified employee Elizabeth Stroven, 
kindergarten at Feeser, beginning 9/2/14 and ending 6/5/15. 

   

Volunteer 
Leave 

Employment of ten (10) certified employees for employment 

for the 2014-2015 school year:   
Molly Bails, interventions at Monger 

Lyndel Borener, music at Beck 
David Kriegel, automation engineering at Career Center 

Mary Krieger-Miller, interventions at Woodland 
Nia Mathews, grade 1 at Monger 

Scott McAninch, world languages at Central 
Bruce McDonald, grade 2 at Monger 

Evelyn Muniz, interventions at Beck 
Sara Pickler, science at Pierre Moran 

Timothy Taylor, grade 5 at Daly  
   

Certified 

Employment 

Employment of the following two (2) classified employees, 
who have successfully completed their probationary period 
on dates indicated:   

Delicia Baskin, paraprofessional at Pinewood; 8/25/14 
Olivia Sanchez, paraprofessional at Osolo; 8/25/14 

 

Classified 
Employment 

Resignation of seven (7) classified employees effective on 

dates indicated:  
Tanisha Anderson, paraprofessional at North Side; 

8/29/14 
Nicole Cantzler, paraprofessional at Eastwood; 9/8/14 

Elizabeth DeWyse, secretary at Central; 9/12/14 
Mary Kay Dicks, secretary at Pierre Moran; 8/20/14 

Tina Iavagnilio, food service at North Side; 8/22/14 
Corine Lewis, custodian at ESC; 9/15/14 

Ollie Williams, food service at Beck; 8/22/14 
 

Classified 

Resignation 

Termination of the two (2) classified employees effective on 

dated indicated:  
Ramona Donaldson, paraprofessional at Beck, in 

accordance with Board Policy GDBDA, 9/9/14 
Michelle Hines, food service at West Side, in accordance 

with Board Policy GDBDA, 8/27/14 
 

Classified 

Termination 

Regretfully, the death of Beverly Huff, paraprofessional at 
Monger on 8/25/14 with 24 years of service. 

 

Death 

By unanimous action, the Board approved moving Head Start 

programs to Mary Beck, Mary Feeser and Monger as requested by 
Superintendent Haworth.  

 

From the 

Superintendant 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:28p.m. Adjournment 



 

 5. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen -  President 
 

 
  ____________________________________  

  Carolyn R. Morris -  Vice President 
 

 
  _____            ________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan -  Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter -  Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber -  Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr -  Member 

 
 

  _____               ________  ______________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver -  Member 

 
Signatures 

 









ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
Business Office 

 
September 19, 2014 
 
TO:  Dr. Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM:  Douglas A. Hasler 
 
SUBJECT: 2015 Budget 
 
 

 
 I will be recommending Board approval of the proposed budget and the Capital Projects 
and Bus Replacement Plans in the September 23rd Board meeting.  As you recall, the formal 
presentation of the budget occurred during the August 26th Board meeting, and public hearings 
on the budget, CPF, and Bus Replacement were conducted during the September 9th Board 
meeting. 
 
 The Board packet for next week’s meeting includes the various resolutions that require 
Board approval.  Specifically, Budget Form 4—Resolution for Appropriations and Tax Rates, 
Resolution to Adopt a Capital Projects Plan, Resolution to Adopt a Bus Replacement Plan, a 
Budget Reduction Resolution, a Tax Neutrality Resolution, and a Budget Goals Resolution.  All of 
these resolutions are required by the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance in 
order to finalize our proposed budget for 2015.  I will be recommending your approval of all of 
these proposed resolutions. 
 
 If you have any questions concerning any of these documents prior to Tuesday night, 
please contact me at 262-5563. 



ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION FOR APPROPRIATIONS AND TAX RATE

Be it ordained/resolved by the Board of School Trustees that for the expenses of ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL 
CORPORATION for the year ending December 31, 2015 the sums herein specified are hereby appropriated and ordered set 
apart out of the several funds herein named and for the purposes herein specified, subject to the laws governing the same. Such 
sums herein appropriated shall be held to include all expenditures authorized to be made during the year, unless otherwise 
expressly stipulated and provided for by law. In addition, for the purposes of raising revenue to meet the necessary expenses of 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL CORPORATION, the property tax levies and property tax rates as herein specified are 
included herein. Budget Form 4-B for all funds must be completed and submitted in the manner prescribed by the Department of 
Local Government Finance.

This ordinance/resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval by the  Board of School 
Trustees.

 Name of Adopting Entity / Fiscal Body Type of Adopting Entity / Fiscal Body

Board of School Trustees School Board

 Date of Adoption

09/23/2014

Prescribed by the Department of Local Government Finance           
Approved by the State Board of Accounts

       Budget Form No. 4 (Rev. 2013)

Ordinance Number:

Fund 
Code

Fund Name Adopted 
Budget

Adopted Tax 
Levy

Adopted Tax 
Rate

0022 REFERENDUM FUND - EXEMPT 
OPERATING - POST 2009

$4,000,000 $4,000,000 0.1798

0101 GENERAL                                 $85,998,845 $0 0.0000

0180 DEBT SERVICE                            $13,850,994 $14,399,829 0.6472

0186 SCHOOL PENSION DEBT $1,636,557 $2,220,413 0.0998

1214 CAPITAL PROJECTS (School)                 
      

$10,546,399 $10,109,544 0.4544

6301 TRANSPORTATION                          $5,337,612 $4,254,965 0.1912

6302 BUS REPLACEMENT $1,274,817 $1,219,435 0.0548

$122,645,224 $36,204,186 1.6272

DLGF-Reviewed Funds



Name Title Signature

 ATTEST

Name Signature

Dorisanne H. Nielsen

Aye

Nay

Abstain

Carolyn R. Morris

Aye

Nay

Abstain

Glenn L. Duncan

Aye

Nay

Abstain

Karen S. Carter

Aye

Nay

Abstain

Susan C. Daiber

Aye

Nay

Abstain

Jeri E. Stahr

Aye

Nay

Abstain

Doug Weaver

Aye

Nay

Abstain



 RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A PLAN 

 FOR A CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

 (20-2305) 

 

 This resolution is adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart, Elkhart County, Indiana: 

 

 WHEREAS, A School Capital Projects Fund has been established; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is required under I.C. 20-46-6-5 to adopt a plan with 

respect to the Capital Projects Fund; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees held a public hearing on the capital projects plan on 

September 9, 2014, at 2720 California Road. 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees that the plan for Elkhart 

Community Schools for the years 2015 through 2019 is hereby incorporated by reference into this 

resolution, and is adopted as the Board of Trustees’ plan with respect to the School Capital Projects 

Fund. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees shall submit a certified copy of 

this resolution (including the adopted plan) to the Department of Local Government Finance as 

required by I.C. 20-40-8-8 for approval. 

 

 

ADOPTED THIS 23
rd 

 DAY OF September 2014. 

 

             AYE           NAY 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES, ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________________, Secretary 

      Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools resolutioncpf 



 RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE YEAR 2015 

 BUS REPLACEMENT PLAN 

 (20-2305) 

 

 This resolution is adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart, Elkhart County, Indiana: 

 

 Whereas a School Bus Replacement Plan has been established; and 

 

 Whereas the Board of School Trustees is required under I.C. 20-46-5 to adopt a plan with 

respect to the School Bus Replacement; and 

 

 Whereas the Board of School Trustees held a public hearing on the plan on the 9
th

 day of 

September, 2014, at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana; 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of School Trustees that the plan entitled  

School Bus Replacement Plan for the years 2015 through 2026, is hereby incorporated by reference 

into this resolution, and is adopted as the Board of School Trustees’ plan with respect to the School 

Bus Replacement Plan. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of School Trustees shall submit a certified 

copy of this resolution (including the adopted plan and the Calculation Worksheet) to the 

Department of Local Government as required by I.C. 20-40-7 for approval. 

 

 

ADOPTED THIS 23
rd 

DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2014. 

 

   

           AYE           NAY 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

 

  BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES, ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________________, Secretary 

      Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools resolutnsbr 



Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart County, Indiana 

 

TAX NEUTRALITY RESOLUTION 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Indiana Code 20-48-1-2, as originally enacted, provided that each 

year that a pension debt service levy is needed for purposes of funding retirement or 

severance liabilities, a school corporation must reduce the total property tax levy for the 

school corporation’s transportation, school bus replacement, capital projects, art 

association and historical society funds in an amount equal to the property tax levy 

needed for the pension debt service; 

WHEREAS, IC 20-48-1-2 was amended by Section 27 of HEA 1192 (2012) to 

allow school corporations with retirement or severance bond liability to reduce the 

amount of the tax neutrality reduction otherwise required; 

WHEREAS, IC 20-48-1-2 now authorizes school corporations to reduce the 

amount of the tax neutrality reduction by specified percentages in budget years 2013, 

2014, and 2015 upon the adoption of a resolution; 

 WHEREAS, absent modification of the full tax neutrality reduction, the ability of 

Elkhart Community Schools to fulfill the purposes of its Capital Projects Fund and 

School Bus Replacement Fund would be significantly impaired due to reduction in the 

certified levies of such funds; 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL 

TRUSTEES OF ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS that the tax neutrality 

adjustment percentage for property taxes first due and payable in 2013 be 25%, 50% in 

2014, and 75% in 2015, with the balance of such adjustments being allocated between its 

Capital Projects Fund, Transportation Operating Fund, and its Bus Replacement Fund (in 

proportions specified by the Executive Director of Support Services) for budget year 

2015. 

  



Adopted this 23
rd

 day of September, 2014 

 

  AYE       NAY 

 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

 

Attest:   ___________________________ 

  Secretary of Board of Trustees 







ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 

RESOLUTION TO REDUCE PROPOSED BUDGET 
 

(Reduces total budget estimate, Budget Form 4B, Line 1 – 2015) 
(Reduces necessary expenditures, Jul 1-Dec 31, Budget Form 4B, Line 2 – 2014) 

(Reduces Operating Balance, Budget Form 4B, Line 11) 
(Reduces Net Amount to be Raised, Budget Form 4B, Line 16) 

(Reduces Net Tax Rate, Budget Form 4B, Line 17) 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees adopted a resolution on January 6, 
2014 which resolves that the total school tax rate for the 2015 budget year will 
not exceed $1.2861 (per $100 of taxable assessed valuation), and 
 

WHEREAS, it may be necessary to make reductions in certain existing 
appropriations, and reductions in the proposed budget estimate, operating 
balance, net amount to be raised, and/or net tax rates, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the exact amount of such reductions will be determined through 
the budget approval process conducted by the Indiana Department of Local 
Government Finance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

(1) The Treasurer is authorized to reduce Budget Form 4B, Lines 1, 2, 
11, 16, and 17 in the amounts determined to be necessary 
through the DLGF budget approval process. 
 

(2) Said reductions are understood to modify figures and amounts 
referenced in other budget documents, including Budget Form 3 
(Notice to Taxpayers), and Budget Form 4 (Resolution for 
Appropriations and Tax Rates). 

 
(3) The Treasurer is directed to report on the amount of reduction(s) 

at a regular meeting of the Board of School Trustees. 
 
 
 



ADOPTED THIS 23rd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2014: 
 
 
  AYE       NAY 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 
 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 
 Secretary, Board of School Trustees 













      

DATE:  9/18/14  

TO:   Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent 

         Board of School Trustees 

FROM:    C. Clarke, M. Hartman, K. Hartm 

SCHOOL /ENTITY APPLYING:  Memorial High School-Art Department     RFA Read   YES   NO 

NAME OF ADMINISTRATOR APPROVING APPLICATION: Mark Tobolski  

GRANT TITLE:     Smart Board  

ENTITY APPLYING TO:  Elkhart Education Foundation  

GRANT AMOUNT:  $5,000    GRANT SUBMISSION DEADLINE:  October 10, 2014  

 

EXPLANTION OF GRANT:  

 

The Elkhart Education Foundation Grant will be used to purchase 1 interactive Smart Board that will be 
used by all art classes.  This Smart Board will greatly enhance the use of visuals within our content area 
while increasing student engagment/participation and exposing students to art, artists, processes and 
museums around the world that would otherwise be unavailable to them. 

 
IF PART OF GRANT, NOTIFY: 

DIRECTOR OF TECHNOLOGY         YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF SAFETY AND SECURITY     YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES      YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERVICES      YES  N/A             DATE  

 

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:  

We are currently operating in our art classrooms with very little updated technology, which can be 
extremely challenging since visuals are such a huge part of our curriculum and so easily accessed 
through technology.  With Smart Boards becoming increasingly important and necessary in the 
classroom, we will easily use one daily, often hourly, in the art classroom. 

 
 

WHERE/HOW WILL GRANT FUNDING BE UTILIZED:  

Memorial Art Classrooms -Used to enhance art lesson with the use of visuals  
WHO WILL MONITOR GRANT COMPLIANCE AND COMPLETE REQUIRED REPORTS: 

Whitney Goeglein  
 

BOARD:  APPROVED DENIED 

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL         

Grant Approval Form 



      

DATE:  9/10/2014  

TO:   Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent 

         Board of School Trustees 

FROM:    Kim Boynton  

SCHOOL /ENTITY APPLYING:  Roosevelt STEAM Academy     RFA Read   YES   NO 

NAME OF ADMINISTRATOR APPROVING APPLICATION: Kim Boynton and Jeff Komins  

GRANT TITLE:     Verizon Innovative Learning Grant  

ENTITY APPLYING TO:  Verizon  

GRANT AMOUNT:  $20,000    GRANT SUBMISSION DEADLINE:  10/6/2014  

 

EXPLANTION OF GRANT:  

 

If awarded, this grant will provide funding for professional development for Roosevelt STEAM 
Academy teachers supporting their work with 1:1 computing. 

 
IF PART OF GRANT, NOTIFY: 

DIRECTOR OF TECHNOLOGY         YES  N/A             DATE 9/10/14  

DIRECTOR OF SAFETY AND SECURITY     YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES      YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERVICES      YES  N/A             DATE  

 

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:  

Professional development is ongoing as part of the STEAM Academy implementation. This grant is an 
opportunity to gain funding for professional development opportunities, but will not require a 
sustainability plan. 

 
 

WHERE/HOW WILL GRANT FUNDING BE UTILIZED:  

Professional Development for Roosevelt STEAM Academy teachers  
WHO WILL MONITOR GRANT COMPLIANCE AND COMPLETE REQUIRED REPORTS: 

Jeff Komins and Tessa Sutton  
 

BOARD:  APPROVED DENIED 

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL         

Grant Approval Form 



      

DATE:  9/18/2014  

TO:   Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent 

         Board of School Trustees 

FROM:    Kim Boynton  

SCHOOL /ENTITY APPLYING:  North Side/Elkhart Community Schools    RFA Read   YES   NO 

NAME OF ADMINISTRATOR APPROVING APPLICATION: Kim Boynton  

GRANT TITLE:     Lowes Toolbox for Education  

ENTITY APPLYING TO:  Lowes  

GRANT AMOUNT:  97,800    GRANT SUBMISSION DEADLINE:  10/15/2014  

 

EXPLANTION OF GRANT:  

 

Project if funded will include fencing and pillars on the Bristol Street side of North Side Middle School. 
The fence will provide security for public parking during events at North Side gymnasium. The fencing 
will also provide a barrier between the parking area and Bristol Street for physical education classes. If 
an accident occurs on Bristol Street, the fencing will provide a barrier between the accident and those 

 
IF PART OF GRANT, NOTIFY: 

DIRECTOR OF TECHNOLOGY         YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF SAFETY AND SECURITY     YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES      YES  N/A             DATE  

DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERVICES      YES  N/A             DATE  

 

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:  

No sustainability plan required. Fencing damage or repair will be handled on an as needed basis. 

 
 

WHERE/HOW WILL GRANT FUNDING BE UTILIZED:  

Fencing and pillars  
WHO WILL MONITOR GRANT COMPLIANCE AND COMPLETE REQUIRED REPORTS: 

Kim Boynton, Tony Gianesi, Bob Woods  
 

BOARD:  APPROVED DENIED 

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL         

Grant Approval Form 





















 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Date:   September 23, 2014 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:   Mr. W. Douglas Thorne 

Subject:  Personnel Recommendations 
 
 

 

 

Certified 

 
 

 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of two consent agreements relating to 

unpaid time and retention compensation. 

 

 

b.  Resignation – We report the resignation for the following employees: 

 

Philip Bergt    ESC/Psychologist 

Began:  8/18/04    Resign:  9/15/14 

 

Ami Damer-Schlamersdorf  Beck/Kindergarten 

Began:  8/20/03    Resign:  9/12/14 

 

Mary Krieger-Miller   Woodland/Interventions 

Began:   9/8/14    Resign:  9/9/14 

 

Elizabeth Spornhauer   West Side/Special Education 

Began:  3/3/13    Resign:  9/23/14 

 

Tim Tobin    Central/World Language 

Began:  8/13/14    Resign:  8/22/14 

 

 

 

c.  New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2014-15 school year: 

 

 

Nicole Allison  Cleveland~/Eastwood/ENL 

 

Ashley Bailey  Hawthorne/Interventions 

 

Jennifer Batts  Tipton/Mathematics 

 

Lorren Bordine Hawthorne/Grade 2 

 

Elizabeth Cauley Hawthorne/Speech Pathologist 

 

Laura Cohen  Hawthorne/Special Education 

 



2 

 

Tami Eder  Memorial/World Language 

 

Maribeth Harrell Central/ENL 

 

Christi Rucker  West Side/Language Arts 

 

Kendra Stutzman Daly/Grade 1 

 

 

 

 

Classified 

 
 

 

a.  New Employees  - We recommend regular employment for the following classified   

  employees: 

 

  Tisa Dobie   Daly/Food Service 

  Began: 5/6/14   PE: 9/16/14 

 

  Articia James   Transportation/Bus Driver Unassigned 

  Began: 5/8/14   PE: 9/18/14 

    

b.  Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Lisa Grover   Memorial/Food Service 

  Began: 8/13/13   Resign: 9/12/14 

 

  Glenda Wyatt   Central/Food Service 

  Began: 10/15/02  Resign: 9/12/14 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employees: 

 

Lee Burdorf   EACC/WVPE Program Director 

Began: 4/9/01   Retire: 2/16/15 

    13 Years of Service 

 

Sandra Kindig   Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/13/03  Retire: 9/26/14 

    10 Years of Service 

 

Linda Lawson   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/25/04   Retire: 10/1/14 

    10 Years of Service 

 

Karen Proctor   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/24/92   Retire: 10/31/14 

    22 Years of Service 

 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Gift Acceptance-Huneryager
	Gift Acceptances Target, WNDU, and Burns
	Gift Acceptances(2)-Howard & Son, FF 338  EACC
	Gift Acceptance-Walmart
	Gift Acceptance-Watkins
	Minutes - work session September 9 2014
	Minutes September 9 2014
	Financial Report Public
	Extra Curricular Purchase
	Budget Memo to BST -- 2015 Budget
	Budget Form 4 (Final) (2015)
	Resolution to Adopt CPF
	Resolution to Adopt Bus Repalcement
	Tax Neutrality Resolution (2015)
	Budget Goals Resolution
	Budget Reduction Resolution for 2015
	Bid Recommendation Gianesi
	Fundraisers
	Grant - Elkhart Education Foundation MHS
	Grant - Verizon Innovative Learning Grant
	Grant Request-Lowes NSMS
	Grant Request-Target-Beck
	Grant - Target field Trip
	Grant - Target field trip explanation

	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leaves
	Personnel Report

